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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligations to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in
which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that
it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed
companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should
note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.
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Financial Summary
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For the year ended 31st March,
BEZA=1+—BLFE

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
—EE-F —TTE=F —TENF —TTRF |ZBEARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
RESULTS ES
Turnover 0] 152,918 258,431 299,896 274,662 47,106
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BRELRT (BEB) R 35,807 61,424 78,780 76,017 (28,599)
Taxation IE (4,100) (3,411) (4,024) (3,587) (2,879)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FRRFEG
attributable to equity holders (B#B) & H 31,707 58,013 74,756 72,430 (31,478)
Dividends sy (10,000) - (5,890) - -
At 31st March,
R=A=+—8H
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
—E2E-F —TT= —EENFE —TTHF |ZBEXRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T FETT FHET FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEHE 31,789 134,647 275,146 358,671 330,838
Total liabilities BERRE (10,266) (8,960) (12,388) (27,250) (24,907)
Shareholders’ funds KRES 21,523 125,687 262,758 331,421 305,931

Notes: The results for each of the three years ended 31st March, 2003 have been
prepared on a combined basis as if the group structure immediately after the

group reorganisation had been in existence since 1st April, 2000.

K BE_ZEZE=F=-A=+—HUE=BAFERF2%E
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Chairman’s Statement

T RS

Dear Shareholders and Directors,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the
Group's annual report for the year ended 31st March, 2006 to the shareholders.

The Group has hit snag in terms of research and development, manufacturing,
distribution and trading of light source products. Turnover and loss attributable
to shareholders for the year amounted to approximately HK$47.11 million
and HK$31.48 million respectively, as compared to turnover and profit
attributable to shareholders approximately HK$274.66 million and HK$72.43
million respectively of last year.

Whilst market competition in certain lighting product segments has got more
intense, with the success of the Group’s on research and development in its
core products, among competitors producing the same products, the
production cost of the Group has strong competitive advantage, cost control
and unique Tungda brand products, the Group is able to maintain a competitive
and cost advantage, enjoy a stable gross profit margin and an optimistic
development prospect.

The Group has dedicated resources to develop and supply the market with
innovative, high quality energy-saving light source products. Nevertheless the
Group has deferred investment in research and development of high-wattage
induction lamps, automobile HID xenon lamps and microwave sulphur lamps
since the year 2004/05.

During the year 2005/06, the Group has continued to participate in many
international lighting fairs which provided invaluable opportunities to promote
our products to potential new customers from around the world.

The Group has been distributor of GE Lighting since 1996 and has been
appointed by GE Lighting as its exclusive distributor for lighting fixtures in
Hong Kong and Macau in January, 2004. The appointment enables the Group
to expand its product offerings to include lighting fixtures and also symbolizes
our successful long term cooperation with GE Lighting.

The Group has been actively seeking capable distributors to expand its sales
and distribution network.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all the Directors
and staff for their continuous support, dedication and contribution to the
Group, as well as shareholders and business partners for their full support
and confidence in the Group.

Chu Chien Tung
Chairman

26th June, 2006
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Operating Results

For the year ended 31st March, 2006, the Group’s turnover was approximately
HK$47.11 million, representing a decrease of approximately 82.84% from
HK$274.66 million last year.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31st March, 2006 was about
58.95% compared to 39.59% for the same period in 2005 as proportion of
house brand products overwhelmingly dominated that of agency brand
products as compared with last year.

House brand products that usually give higher gross profit margin as compared
to agency brand products accounted for about 75.47% of total turnover for
the year 2005/06 (2004/05: 49.48%).

Turnover and profit significantly declined because of:

1. The Group had ceased business with its major PRC customers during
the year ended 31st March, 2005 as business with these PRC customers
became barely profitable in consequency of revaluation of Renminbi.

2. Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 29th July, 2004 and officers of the Commercial Crime
Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force had executed a search warrant
against the premises of the Group in March, 2005. Certain customers,
to them the Group has offered five years general product guarantee for
the Group’s products, are hesitating if the Group will be able to honor
the guarantee should the product fail to operate. Order from these
customers significantly declined.

Other Income and Gains

The major component of other income and gains approximately HK$1.61
million was interest income for the year 2006 as compared to approximately
HK$1.19 million for the same period in 2005. The increase was accounted by
the higher cash and bank balances of the Group.

B 7% & 7 B BE

e Y
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

The selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$1.59 million for the year
ended 31st March, 2006, as compared to approximately HK$4.06 million for
the same period in 2005, which primarily comprised of advertising, exhibition,
and salaries expenses. The amount decreased because of the completion of
significant contracted advertisement and promotion expenses since 2002
which do not recur since 2005.

The administrative expenses for the year comprised primarily of staff
remuneration, depreciation, impairment loss made on the carrying value of
machinery equipment, legal and professional fees, and rental expenses. The
administrative expenses amounted to approximately HK$13.47 million due to
decrease in business activities, directors’ remuneration and legal and
professional fees, as compared to approximately HK$29.24 million with the
corresponding period in 2005.

Research and Development

Committed to providing high quality energy-saving light source products, the
Group has dedicated resources to enhance the offerings of its currently
available induction lamps, and to develop HID xenon automobile headlights
and microwave sulphur lamps. Nevertheless, the Group has deferred
investment in such research and development since the year 2004/05.

No research and development expenses incurred in 2006 as compared to
approximately HK$0.56 million with last year.

Net Loss

The profit before impairment on deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment, finance costs and taxation amounted to approximately
HK$14.31 for the year ended 31st March, 2006, as compared to approximately
HK$76.06 million for the same period in 2005. The Group recorded
approximately HK$42.89 million of impairment on deposits paid for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for the year 2006 (2005: Nil).

As a result of the factors discussed above, the loss attributable to shareholders
for the year ended 31st March, 2006 amounted to approximately HK$31.48
million as compared to profit approximately HK$72.43 million for the same
period in 2005.

Sales and Marketing
For the year ended 31st March, 2006 and following, the Group participated
in the following major international lighting exhibitions:

HERTHHEAX

HE-_ZZXF-A=Z+ B ULFEZHERIY
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EEHEK ME_SEAFHESESEHEMAX-
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HRE EZERBEEANRESHI BRER ESF
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13,470,000/ 70 I —EZ A F R HIA49429,240,000
/%71°

MERBR
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iﬂuiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁuuéﬁ*ﬁﬁ'J FRBEAERSER
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$‘$IEE,. RERUILEH I R

ZEEXFIWEMRERSY - MEFA4/5560,0007 T
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ERNtitfrsmAE 2T NF=A=+—81t
FEZIRRELEELA31,480,0008 T M —_EZH
F [ BRI SR B (s F 40 & 72,430,00078 JT o

HER TR
HE-ZBAF=A=+—RAILFEREERE A%
E2 RN TAREREARER

Hong Kong International Lighting Fair 2005 26th-29th October, 2005 Hong Kong
7 8 B PR 5 A R 2005 —EERFETA-+AABE=-TAH w5
Hong Kong International Auto Parts Fair 8th-11th April, 2006 Hong Kong
EAREBRAEZHNHRE —EERFHANEBE+T—H w5

Light + Building 2006

23rd-27th April, 2006
—EEAFOA-T=RAZE=TLA

Frankfurt, Germany
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Through these exhibitions, the Group promotes “Tungda” brand and products
to potential customers from all over the world. Tungda’s induction lamps and
its potential new product microwave sulphur lamps had been featured in the
international lighting magazine “Switch”, and “Tungda” had been featured
as one of the Hong Kong brands in the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council's “Hong Kong Enterprise”.

Being one of the distributors of GE Lighting for its light source products for
over eight years, the Group was appointed as the exclusive distributor of GE
Lighting for its lighting fixtures in Hong Kong and Macau in January 2004.
The appointment enables the Group to expand its product lines to include
lighting fixtures.

As a result of revaluation of Renminbi, profit from business with the major
PRC customers of Group continued declining and became barely profitable.
The Group had ceased business with these PRC customers during the year
ended 31st March, 2005.

The Group has offered five years general product guarantee for certain of its
products to certain customers. In view of trading in the shares of the Company
has been suspended on the Stock Exchange since 29th July, 2004 and officers
of the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force had executed
a search warrant against the premises of the Group in March, 2005, customers
are hesitating if the Group will be able to honor the guarantee should the
product fail to operate. Order from these customers significantly declined.

Suspension on and Arrangement for the Resumption of Trading of
Shares, and Execution of Warrant by Officers of the Commercial
Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended on the Stock
Exchange since 29th July, 2004. The management understands and shares
the concern of the shareholders of the Company in relation to the suspension
of share trading. The management has sought advice from various
professionals and has appointed a financial advisor in January, 2005 with a
view to resume the share trading as soon as possible.

With reference to the Company’s announcement on 16th March, 2005, officers
of the Commercial Crime Bureau of the Hong Kong Police Force (“CCB")
have executed a warrant for search and seizure against the premises of the
premises of the Group (“CCB Event”). The Group encountered difficulties
and delay to complete its audited accounts for the year ended 31st March,
2005 for announcement of annual results.

Resources are being diverted in order to resume the share trading, to handle
the CCB Event and to complete the audited accounts for announcement of
annual results as soon as possible. The Group’s business and product
investment development plan is interrupted and deferred.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group's shareholders’ funds amounted to
approximately HK$305,93 million (2005: HK$331.42 million). Cash and bank
balances was approximately HK$242.99 million as at 31st March, 2006,
compared to HK$214.79 million as at 31st March, 2005. Increases in cash
stemmed primarily from income generated from operations. The Board believes
that the Group has adequate funds to support its operations and capital
expenditures for future expansion and development.

As respectively at 31st March, 2006 and 31st March, 2005, the Group had no
outstanding bank borrowing. The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as the Group’s
total borrowings to the shareholders’ funds, was 0.10% (2005: 0.13%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There were neither significant investment held by the Group nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies for the years
ended 31st March, 2006 and 2005 except as disclosed in note 13 to the
financial statements of the annual report.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSET
The Group had no significant charge on assets as at 31st March, 2006.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Board believes that the exchange rate risks of the Group is minimal because
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Renminbi in the
PRC and United States dollars, which was relatively stable during the financial
year under review. However, fluctuation of the Renminbi against the Hong
Kong dollar would adversely affect the Group’s performance when measured
in Hong Kong dollar.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities as at both 31st
March, 2006 and 2005.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Segmental information of the Group is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had about 55 full time employees. The
Group's employees were remunerated according to the nature of their duty
and market trend, with discretionary bonus and benefit of retirement scheme,
share options and necessary training. Total staff costs for the year amounted
to approximately HK$4.88 million (2005: HK$11.47 million).

RBES WRERRELXEE
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The share option scheme continues to play an important role in the motivation
and retention of quality employees.

ACQUISITION OF AND IMPAIRMENT ON DEPOSITS PAID FOR
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group had planned to expand and develop its manufacturing capacity by
setting up additional and new production lines. During the year 2004, the
Group has entered into three major contracts for the purchases of machineries
of adjusted total contracts amount HK$80,990,000. Deposits HK$67,105,000
were paid and included in the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2004 in respect
of the three contracts.

The Group further entered into a contract in July 2004 of amount
approximately HK$21,493,000 and paid HK$7,965,000 as deposit in August,
2004 for the contract for the purchases of machineries which are
complementary to the previous contract for the automobile HID xenon lamp
production line.

The machineries to be acquired by the Group will enable the Group to (1)
expand the production capacity of its existing induction lamp production line;
(2) expand its product line to include microwave sulphur lamps (a new and
innovative type of mercury-free environmental friendly and energy-saving light
source products); and (3) expand its product line to include automobile high
intensity discharge (“HID") xenon lamps (a popular type of car headlamps in
developed countries including European Union and Japan). The machineries
are relevant to the section “Expansion of manufacturing capacity and
capability” under the heading “BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND IMPLEMENTATION
PLANS"” of the Company’s Prospectus dated 19th July, 2002.

The machineries for the induction lamp production line contract amount of
HK$21,000,000 have been delivered respectively in April and May, 2004 and
the contract is completed.

The microwave sulphur lamp production line contract amount of
HK$20,180,000 and of deposit paid amount of HK$9,880,000 have been
delayed and deferred for 21 months pursuant to a supplementary agreement
dated on 31st October, 2005 and signed between the parties.

For the automobile HID xenon lamp production line contract amount of
HK$39,810,000 (the “first xenon lamp contract”) and of deposit paid in March,
2004 amount of HK$38,865,000, delivery should be effected within eighteen
month commencing from the date of deposit payment according to the terms
of the first xenon lamp contract. The Group has signed a supplementary
agreement with the machinery vendor to extend the delivery schedule for
twelve months in order to match with availability of suitable and experienced
engineers yet to be recruited by the Group.
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For the other HID xenon lamp production line contract amount of
HK$21,493,000 (the “complementary xenon lamp contract”) and of first
deposit paid amount of HK$7,965,000 in May, 2004, the second deposit
payment should be effected on or before 30th September, 2004 and delivery
should be effected within eighteen months commencing from the date of the
first deposit payment according to the terms of the complementary xenon
lamp contract. Neither the second deposit payment nor the delivery has been
effected pursuant to machineries delivery extension of the first xenon lamp
contract. The Group has signed a supplementary agreement with the
machinery vendor to extend the second and following deposit payments for
twenty four months and delivery will be effected after eighteen months of
the second deposit payment.

However, the expansion and development of manufacturing capacity plans
were disrupted and delayed since trading in the shares of the Company is
suspended on the Stock Exchanges and, in particular, the CCB Event. In view
of expected and possible technical obsolescence for the microwave sulphur
lamp and the HID xenon lamp production lines, the Group has requested,
negotiated with and sought concession of the machinery vendors to rescind
the contracts and to refund deposits already paid for the contracts.

The Group and the microwave sulphur lamp machinery vendor have agreed
and in June, 2006 signed agreement:

1. to rescind the contract;

2. the machinery vendor will refund HK$957,000 and will forfeit
HK$5,423,000 from the balance amount HK$6,380,000 of deposit paid
by the Group; and

3. should the Group place new order to the machinery vendor within twelve
months from the date of the agreement, the Group is entitled to apply
the amount HK$5,423,000 of deposit being forfeited as for payment
of the new order.
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The Group and the HID xenon lamp machinery vendor, subject to signature
and other further terms of an agreement, have in May, 2006, in principle,
agreed:

1. to rescind the two contracts;

2. the machinery vendor will refund HK$9,366,000 and will forfeit
HK$37,464,000 from the total amount HK$46,830,000 of deposits paid
by the Group; and

3. should the Group place new order to the machinery vendor within the
period which is yet to be stipulated, the Group is entitled to apply the
amount HK$37,464,000 of deposit being forfeited as for payment of
the new order.

PROSPECTS

Given the increasing awareness in environmental protection in the lighting
industry, the Group is confident that customers will continue to replace the
traditional light source products with the Group’s products owing to longer
life hours and higher energy efficiency.

The Group will continue to pursue and focus on its core business of being a
provider of good quality light source products and will use its best endeavor
to maximize return to its shareholders in the years ahead.

The Group experienced the worst situation since its establishment. The
management expects a positive development and prospect in the future.

BARARE-THR E_TTFRAALE
EHEHERRERAERI LRS!

i
B
El

1. BUHEBEMOEL:

2. HRHERBED X T146,830,0008 L] & F
7R U37,464,000/%8 T WiREH T 9,366,000/
TT K

3. EHEAREREAZHBATHIE ~AEEAR#
&R U H)37,464,0008 7L R] & AIEX [AH#TET &
ZREe

RE

EERAXAHEIRERE AEEHEEL TPE
EEFTRAEESTRREAESRERUEZEM B
REZACRER

FEBRESHNEITERAFERHEL VRERMIER
ZIRLER AN ARKBEERAB NiEEERE R

AEBGETBERIARZ SIRER ERERAR
RERAT RS-

12

RAHFMBRAZERER DT 2005/06 F &,



DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chien Tung, aged 53, is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. He is a member of Political Consultative Conference of Henan
Province, Vice-Chairman of Putian Overseas Chinese Association. He was
awarded “The Outstanding Entrepreneur” in Fujian Xianyou County. He was
appointed as a director of the Company on 19th December, 2001. He is
currently a part-time professor of the Faculty of Light Sources and Illuminating
Engineering in Fudan University. Since the establishment of Tungda Industrial
Limited in 1984, Mr. Chu has participated in manufacturing, trading and sales
of lighting sources products. Mr. Chu is the founder of Tungda Industrial
Limited in 1984.

Mr. CHU Chick Kei, aged 48, is the vice chairman and deputy chief executive
officer of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on
19th December, 2001. He joined Tungda Industrial Limited in August 1986
and has been engaged in manufacturing, trading, sales, management and
administration. He is the brother of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.

Mr. CHU Sen Hei, aged 26, is a director and the son of Mr. Chu Chien Tung.
He was appointed as a director of the Company on 10th April, 2002. He
joined Tungda Industrial Limited in April 2000 and is responsible for technical
development of lighting sources, sales for overseas market and administration.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony, aged 45, is an non-executive director of the
Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 1st June, 2004.
Dr. Fung graduated from Massachusetts Institute of Technology with dual
Bachelor of Science degrees in Chemical Engineering and Chemistry, and a
Master degree in Chemical Engineering Practice. He also holds a Master degree
in Business Administration from The Wharton Business School of University
of Pennsylvania and a Doctoral in Philosophy degree in Chemical Engineering
from the University of Delaware of the United States (“US").

Dr. Fung is currently the General Manager of a private investment firm focusing
on healthcare industry in the People’s Republic of China. Previously, Dr. Fung
has extensive management consultancy experience in financial services,
manufacturing, and energy sectors in Asia and US. He is the holder of 15 US
patents on the development of new catalytic materials and their related
petrochemical and refining processes.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lei Bo, aged 43, is an independent non-executive director of the
Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 30th September,
2003. Mr. Zhu graduated from Shanghai Institute of Building Materials, Renmin
University of China and Tongji University in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"). He is also a deputy director of Glass Sub-committee of The Chinese
Ceramic Society and fellow of Coating Sub-committee of China Architectural
and Industrial Glass Association. Mr. Zhu is currently the General Manager of
China Luoyang Float Glass Group Company Limited, a company established
in the PRC and has extensive experience in production, coordination and
technology management.

Mr. HONG Yong Hwan, aged 48, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company. He was appointed as a director of the Company on 18th
September, 2003. Mr. Hong graduated from National Taiwan Normal University
and Korea University. He was presently an executive director of a retailing
and trading firm in the People’s Republic of China.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHU Qing Chun, aged 38, is the deputy general manager of Light Power
and Tungda Fujian. He graduated from Xiamen University in 1990 with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics. Prior to joining the Group in June 2000, he
was a deputy general manager of Shanghai Chientung Industrial Limited, a
trading company based in Shanghai, the PRC.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Yiu Hung, aged 50, is the Qualified Accountant and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in June 2004 and is
responsible for accounting and company secretarial functions of the Group.
He has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in Social Science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) has
promulgated the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules which sets out corporate
governance principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”).

The Company has applied most of the Principles and complied with most of
the Code Provisions as far as possible and practicable except for:

(1) the Code Provision A.2.1 which requires the separation of the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; and

(2) the Code Provision B.1.1 which requires the establishment of a
remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference.

An explanation of the deviations is set out at below. The Company will review
its current practice of the Principles and Code Provisions in order to comply
with the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the requirements of director’s securities
transaction stated in the GEM Listing Rules. All the directors of the Company
have confirmed that they have complied with the requirements as set out in
the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board comprises of six members and their positions are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHU Chien Tung
Mr. CHU Chick Kei
Mr. CHU Sen Hei

Non-executive Director
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo

Profiles of Directors are set out on page 13 to 14 of this annual report for the
year ended 31st March, 2006.

The Directors, with relevant and sufficient experience and qualification have
exercised due care, fiduciary duties to the significant issues of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Mr. CHU Chien Tung is the brother of Mr.
CHU Chick Kei and the father of Mr. CHU Sen Hei. All other directors have no
relation to each other or all Directors have no business relation with the Group.
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The Directors held four meetings and the attendance of the Directors for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2006 is as follows:

Name of Director Attendance
Mr. CHU Chien Tung 4/4
Mr. CHU Chick Kei 2/4
Mr. CHU Sen Hei 2/4
Dr. FUNG Shiu Lun, Anthony 1/4
Mr. HONG Yong Hwan 4/4
Mr. ZHU Lei Bo 4/4

The Board also approved matters by resolution in writing. Information of
material issues, due notice of meeting and minutes of each directors’ meeting
have been sent to each of the Directors for their information, comment and
review.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have an officer with the title of “Chief Executive
Officer”. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is responsible for the management of the Board
and strategic development of the Group. Mr. CHU Chick Kei and Mr. CHU
Sen Hei respectively are responsible for the day to day management of The
Company. Mr. CHU Chien Tung is also responsible for the overall management
of and decision of the Group. This constitutes a deviation of the Code Provision
of A.2.1. As Mr. CHU Chien Tung has extensive experience in the industry,
the Board considers that the arrangement is beneficial to the Group as a
whole. Despite the aforesaid, the Board will review such arrangement from
time to time and consider the appointment of a Chief Executive Officer in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the next Annual General
Meeting and no contract is currently in force with them.

The relevant retiring Director has offered himself for election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a remuneration committee, the Board of
the Directors is authorized by the Shareholders at Annual General Meeting to
fix the remuneration of the Directors whereas a Director shall abstain from
voting in respect of any remuneration and fees paid to his interest. The
Company will arrange for the setting up of a remuneration committee in
order to comply with the Code Provision.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal control system. The existing
Audit Committee comprises only of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and is not in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules which
requires, among others, the audit committees must comprise a minimum of 3
members.

The Company will arrange to appoint at least 3 Audit Committee members in
order to comply with the relevant requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination committee of the Company is not considered necessary after the
assessment of the present situation of the Company. The Board will review
the profile of the current Directors and nominate directors (if any) on a regular
basis in order to ensure that the composition of the Board is capable to fulfill
its obligation and responsibility.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing of audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the auditors of the
Company also set out their responsibilities in its Report of the Auditors in the
Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2006.
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Report of the Directors

§

EEEHE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2006 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 28 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31st March, 2006.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results of the Group for each of the five years ended 31st
March, 2006 is set out on page 4 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements during the year in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised or issued share capital
during the year. Further details in relation to the authorised and issued share
capital of the Company are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Chien Tung (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chick Kei

Mr. Chu Sen Hei

Non-executive Director:
Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo
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Report of the Directors TEEE ¥ E

In accordance with the Articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Yong Hwan and Mr. Zhu Lei Bo, shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei has entered
into a service contract with the Company. Particulars of these contracts, except
as indicated, are in all material respects identical and are set out below:

1. each service contract of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and
Chu Sen Hei is of two years duration commenced on 1st August, 2004
until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than three
months’ prior written notice or payment of salary in lieu thereof, such
notice to expire upon the initial term of two years;

2. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is
entitled to a monthly salary plus a double pay equivalent to one month’s
salary;

3. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei is
entitled to such management bonus by reference to the consolidated
net profits of the Group after taxation and extraordinary items (“Net
Profits”) as the board of directors may approve provided that the
aggregate amount of management bonuses payable to all executive
directors in respect of any financial year of the Group shall not exceed
20% of the Net Profits for the relevant financial year; and

4. each of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Sen Hei shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum in respect of
any resolution of the board of directors regarding the amount of annual
salary and management bonus payable to himself.

Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony has entered into a service contract with the
Company. Particulars of the contract are set out below:

1. the service contract of Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is of initial fixed
term of one year commenced on 1st June, 2004 which appointment
shall continue after the expiry of the initial fixed term and either party
may terminate the appointment by giving the other party at least one
month’s notice in writing expiring not earlier than the initial fixed term
of one year; and

2. Dr. Fung Shiu Lun, Anthony is entitled to a monthly salary.

BREARBZARBEERAANE6 8715 Bk
ERARERELEEREERREBFASHESR X
ARERABEERBEE

RERALE RERLEERKRERELCD T EEARF
AVRBAN -BRABREAEN ZFEENZFBENE
BEARTEBER M

1. KREREL KREREERARBELEZBEZR
BEON_ZTZENFN\A ARG RBWE B
EHR-HREFTELTIR=ZBEAZELER
BHIAZNHERE /L MZBARI TR
FHRER:

2. KRERRELE REREERKREREBELESBAER
ERAF ZMEER—BAFHFE LR

3. AREEA-KEREERIEEILEHAEK
BEBILA ZiEA 2 E2EE St E 2K
SERF NS EEB B ZGRA LT ([47)]) 51
B RAEERTANMBFERNTF2EBRTE
FEBTABE TREBEHEVERFEL
F20%: &

4. RERRELE KERLEERKREBEL HANE

RENTFREZFHLERCABRNEMNES
BRARRE BTBRINEEAHA-

FIRBE T B AR R AR RS K& FIEHTIW
™~

1. BABELZRBAON _ZZENFANA—AH
w FEEERRS—F ROFEEEHERER
HEBE BE2ER—TAHTHER AR —E
AZEEBAL IR MBEBZESTFR
FEEER—FAER R

2. BKBIELEHEERAR-

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2005/06

19



Report of the Directors

EE

Save as disclosed above, none of the independent non-executive directors
and the non-executive director has entered into any service contract with the
Group.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors has entered into any service
agreements with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st March, 2006, the interests of the directors and the chief executives of
the Company and their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions
by directors, were as follows:

Long positions
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company and
underlying shares

B EXBEEIN MEBIFATEE R FNTERA
AEBFTBEARBAEL-

BAREREEN BEEEEARFNEEMHER
AR BEMARE AR —FAKIEMBAFELEE
CEERERIN 2RI HH-

EERROREBROZEZERKXR

RIBEREF=ZA=1T—H FRFAEERTHRERR
BEZBMBEAL RNAQRREEMBERER (EER

EFMHEG ([BHRBEERD]) BEXVER) 27
MABBRO T HERBEES M ERMIEXVEETR
SAMEHMEARAREEMERZMBERRAF ([H3Z
) 2tz (BREBIEES RBEEMBBIERURER
BIENEERA 2 BEIXE)  RARER AR AR
BEEFRMEGRIIEIS2EFE 2 ERM RS HAR
R AR S LR (TRIERR LR 5
SAIREMERETES R D ZRECHE AN A R
Pz

(a) A REEREE01ETZEERRIEERKRG

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

shares held of the Company

Name of director Capacity e 81T HARDEE BT
EEpR 52 EERYE RAEBS
Mr. Chu Chien Tung Held by controlled corporation (Note) 560,000,000 50.7%

RERRELE mXEEERE (BT

Note:

These shares were held indirectly by Tungda Industrial Limited (“Tungda
Industrial”) through its beneficial interest in the entire issued share capital of
Standard Exceed Limited. Messrs. Chu Chien Tung, Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu
Chun (father of Messrs. Chu Chien Tung and Chu Chick Kei) jointly hold the
entire issued share capital of Tungda Industrial.

Bisz

ZERMBERALE (KB BARAR([RAILE (&
) |) # B E R Standard Exceed Limited & £ 2 217 A%
Az BERERERE KRRAE FELEERKA
EEE (RRRAERFEREEZRNR) XRFHER
AT % (KE) 258 BITRA-
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(b) Share options (b) MERE

Number of

Number of underlying

Name of directors Capacity options held shares

BEEnA 52 FEBRERE HERDHE

Mr. Chu Chien Tung Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KEREA ExnBEBA

Mr. Chu Chick Kei Beneficial owner 1,054,944 1,054,944
KEREE EmnBEBA

Mr. Chu Sen Hei Beneficial owner 10,549,440 10,549,440
KEELEE EmnBEBA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and chief executives of
the Company and their associates has any interest or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations at 31st March, 2006.

SHARE OPTIONS
Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 12th July, 2002,
the board of directors may grant share options to any directors, full time and
part time employees of the Group and the consultant or adviser of the Group.
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

No share option is granted or exercised during the year.

B EXERBEEIN R -_TERF=ZA=+—H KR
EENTHAHIREZBBEATRERRNRRHEME
AR R E B 2 (R IR R ) SRAE 75 B (T
WK E

%B’i%

REARFANR_ZFZ_FLA T - BRMZBREST
£ é%AﬂFﬂﬂi’ile{T%% EREFBEEAR
7R 6% [ 5 S BB ) s AT 1 1 BB B - AN A R RE A T &
BRI M B WwAM 21

FRY BRI LS RTE
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A summary of the movements in the Company’s share options during the

year is as follows:

ARBBRERFAZEHHMMT

Number of share options

BREYE
Closing
Exercise price At At
price  at the date 31st March, Granted or 31st March,
per share of grant 2005  exercised during 2006
Date of grant Exercisable period SRES RRLUEH R=%21f the year RZBSRE
RHAH D i ZUmE ZREZt-B  ERREIAR ZB=t-A
HKS HKS
AT AT
Directors
ES
Mr. Chu Chien Tung 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
RERAHE ZER=E+-AC1-H ZER=ET-AZTNEE
ZE-ZEt-AZtAH
Mr. Chu Chick Kei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 1,054,944 - 1,054,944
28th November, 2013
RERRE ZER=E+-AC1-H ZER=ET-AZTHEE
ZE-ZEt-AZtAH
Mr. Chu Sen Hei 21st November, 2003 29th November, 2003 - 0.452 0.440 10,549,440 - 10,549,440
28th November, 2013
RRERE ZER=ET-ACT-H ZER=EF-AZTNEE
ZE-ZEt-AZtNH
Sub-total /)\&t 12,659,328 - 12,659,328
Employees
E&
3rd October, 2003 22nd October, 2003 - 0.345 0.345 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
21st October, 2013
“EE=E£THAZH “ER=EtAZTIHEE
ZE-ZEFAZT-H
Total 85t 45,800,000 - 45,800,000
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The directors consider that it is not appropriate to value the share options on
the ground that certain crucial factors for such valuation are variables which
cannot be reasonably and objectively determined. Any such valuation of the
share options based on speculative assumptions in respect of such variables
would not be meaningful and the results thereof may be misleading to the
shareholders of the Company.

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the balance
sheet of the Company until such time as the options are exercised, and no
charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options
granted, if any, in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the
nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. Options which lapse or are cancelled are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors and chief executives and their
associates has any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. None of the directors
of the Company, or their spouses or children under 18 years of age, had any
rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group paid rental amounting to HK$108,000 to Tungda
Industrial. Details of such transactions are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during the
year.

EERA R BRZAGECETEEREZSEEEAE
REBETE 2 wAABREBED T EEME.
EMERZFERAEREARERMAGEREEEZE
ETRN MEPAERAEREARA PR

RhBEkE s BFELELERARREEABER
BEEZSERRBETEAL MBARRITELFAR
HEEMRE (F) BEERM TRBRERS AR
BRI EE - S P IT IR iR SR R BRIMNR A AR
BT B D 2 1T R B R D E{E < 2R HER KD
m B RR - R 2 BB B BT ESNB IR E S M
o R

BARMEEEN EERTRERRREZHEAL
BERARARHEMBEEE (EEREFRAEK
1) 2 AR  BRER () RAESF A EARIEES
KRB GPIEIS2RATFE 2 B MRk 2 m
KA BIRBAIFER EWRAFSA6FRECNMERR
AN R ERmRE

BERORESF 2ZH

Bk £SO ER 2 BB SN AR R HEAR A E) - [/ F B
REIHEAERME QRN FAEAREERT LA
B BEARRESAEBBAARRBSEMEMEA
ERZENAESMER - ARREEHRE 2RLMBK
1BEA T FRNMEEBRCRNFARTRAREARRA]
MR 15 89 (E el RE ] o

EERERGHNT 2 RERBERS

FR-AKERRATE (£E) Z{FH£108,0008 e
BAR SFBHNRIBIRENE24 -

B EXRFEEIN AR HER AR RRME A RN
EARAI B A R R] LN S AR R F NEM B A
BMMARREENEPERNEREFEARRZEX
aHe
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2006, the following substantial shareholders (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) who have interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register

FERR

REBARRIREZRMEGIIFEI36 FEENELCM
sk RCZZERF=ZA=T—H BRARREEH
TTIRABEIN AT E 2RI K AR B h FE B #E

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: WK E

Number of

issued ordinary

shares held
in the Company Approximate
RAEAT percentage
e %17 B4
Name of shareholders BREE BB ZEREA BREEDHL
Standard Exceed Limited (Note 1) Standard Exceed Limited (ff#£7) 560,000,000 50.7%
Tungda Industrial Limited (Note 1) RAIE (KE)BRAT (K1) 560,000,000 50.7%
Mr. Chu Chien Tung (Note 2) KBRS E (HaF2) 560,000,000 50.7%

Ms. C

Notes:

han Pik Kam (Note 3) BREE 2+ (ff53)

Standard Exceed Limited is wholly and beneficially-owned by Tungda Industrial
which in turn is beneficially-owned as to 33.33334% by Mr. Chu Chien Tung,
33.33333% by Mr. Chu Chick Kei and 33.33333% by Mr. Chu Siu Chun. Mr.
Chu Siu Chun has no management role in the Group.

Under Section 336 of the SFO, Mr. Chu Chien Tung is deemed to have interests
in all the shares of the Company which Tungda Industrial has interests as he is
entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general meeting
of Tungda Industrial. The other two shareholders of Tungda Industrial, namely
Messrs. Chu Chick Kei and Chu Siu Chun, are not so deemed as they are not
entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting power at general meetings
of Tungda Industrial.

Ms. Chan Pik Kam is the wife of Mr. Chu Chien Tung. Under Section 336 of the
SFO, she is deemed to have interest in all the shares in which Mr. Chu Chien
Tung is interested.

Save as disclosed above, no other person (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares

and u

nderlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Standard Exceed Limited VAR AT (£8) 24T
wmHEE MERATLE(RE) ABAARREE KHERLE
FERKRBHERED P E S HE33.33334% ~ 33.33333%
%33.33333% 5 KRR E ST ERASEE W EEIP B

RIEE S R AERGIE336 & ERREREEFER
RATE (RE) WERRAE LITTRBA=52 — 0%
R REAMBEGRIENRATLE (£8) #EERNME
ARBBMPHERED BRNRATE (£E) M4
BRERAEILEERRBELEBENRATE ()
BERAE LTRBRA=7Z —HNRER WREWRR
WA LS e

REZBLLARERREENEF -REEHFRPE KD
58336 6 MHARMER KRR S L AR O PA B
hEA

B E X EEESN BRA R R EERITHRARIN HEE
AL HBBRENRBEE R KB EGRIIE33616FE
2Bz RABRD 2 ERIRE -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group, in aggregate,
accounted for approximately 78.21% of the Group’s total turnover and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 42.89% of the total turnover.
The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 67.27% of its total purchases for the year. Purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 25.10% of its total purchases.

None of the directors, their respective associates, or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in any of the five largest customers and the five
largest suppliers of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

All transactions between the Group and its customers were carried out on
normal commercial terms.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, the board of directors is not aware of any business or interest
of each director, management shareholder and their respective associates
that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee’s principal duties are the review and supervision of the
Company'’s financial reporting process and internal control systems. The
existing audit committee comprises two independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan and Mr. Zhu Lei Bo.

FEFFRMHER

FN AEEBRARGFARFPDRG MEHBEEEY
78.21% Kk #142.89% + MASEAABERE HEER
FREFBBEENGT 27% « SAMER 2 REEAEER
BBABEEA25.10% °

BEER RESBZBHBALAREEMATHEER
RABAS% A LS EARR RAKEHEE—FTE
RNEZA=Z+T—RIEFEZAREFIOAHEE P
BiEfiEame

AEBERETPRIMARI SR —REEGETET

BE MR

FRA EFETUBERES BEERREAKEZTEZ
BEAL REARAIEEAEEEBBRHRFOER
T HEEEMEERERNZEATEASE R LA
R EAMF = E R

BRBEER

ARRZ ARABERAANNF S HSENL BERE
FRESLBER IO UWEARRRAZLHIARARR
REFHEFTM-

BE HEFBERAQAT LTRSS
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EAARE ETHES
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During the year, the then audit committee held two meetings and performed
the following duties:

1. reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

2. reviewed the unaudited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the three months ended 30th June, 2005, for the three
and six months ended 30th September, 2005 and for the three and
nine months ended 31st December, 2005.

3. reviewed the financial reporting process, internal controls of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31st March, 2005, for
the three months ended 30th June, 2005, for the six months ended
30th September, 2005 and for the nine months ended 31st December,
2005.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing
Rules during the year ended 31st March, 2006, except that the Group has
not yet established a remuneration committee, a nomination committee, the
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are not appointed for specific terms and are subject to re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and that only two
independent non-executive directors are appointed during the year and to
the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2006 and 2005 were
audited by Messrs. TING HO KWAN & CHAN, CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS, who retire and being eligible offer themselves for re-
appointment. The accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2004 and 2003
were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

On behalf of the Board

CHU CHIEN TUNG
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2006

FRN ERZEZZEEERITMAERH BIIUTE
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Report of the Auditors

Az SEM 3R &

To the Shareholders of
Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 28 to 72 which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently, that judgements and estimates are made which are
prudent and reasonable and that the reasons for any significant departure
from applicable accounting standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit,
on those financial statements and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of
the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31st March, 2006 and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2006
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For the Year Ended 31st March, 2006 #HZ=—ZTENF=A=1+—HILFZ

2006 2005
—EBERE —EERE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Mt FET FET
TURNOVER EXEE 5 47,106 274,662
COST OF SALES SHERAK (19,337) (165,923)
GROSS PROFIT EF 27,769 108,739
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Htt AR B 5 1,606 1,185
SELLING EXPENSES HEMX (1,588) (4,064)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES THEX (13,473) (29,243)
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES e X - (558)
IMPAIRMENT ON DEPOSITS PAID FOR KEBME - BERRE
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT ZE A FRE
AND EQUIPMENT (42,887) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS B (FR) ER 6 (28,573) 76,059
FINANCE COSTS =% 7 (26) (42)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION BRELAT (B518) R A (28,599) 76,017
TAXATION HIE 8 (2,879) (3,587)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE A A TIREELER
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (B8, BF 9 (31,478) 72,430
(LOSS)EARNINGS PER SHARE g8 (FR) BF
— Basic —HERK 10 (2.85) cents 1l 6.55 cents il

The notes on pages 33 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.

FEIBENAZMERNEAMBERRNWAK LS
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Consolidated Balance Sheet & & EEBEX

At375tMarch, 2006 R-FZEXNF=H=+—H

(As restated)

(geE5)
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
HfaE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BRE R EAE 11 53,792 56,772
Leasehold land and land use rights fﬂ‘fj:iﬁ&iimﬁﬁﬁ% 12 7,013 6,996
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W BB Rk
plant and equipment HEAPES 14 10,323 56,710
71,128 120,478
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Current portion of leasehold land and HE LR T EAESN
land use rights BVHAER 55 12 152 148
Inventories FE 15 8,894 9,827
Trade and other receivables JEUWE 53 TE K
H b FE YR 3R 16 4,548 13,156
Tax refundable AR B 7418 3,131 275
Bank balances and cash RITEFRR S 18 242,985 214,787
259,710 238,193
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables FEE 5 RIE Rk
H b FEAHBR 3K 17 18,084 23,219
Obligation under a finance lease FE AR
— due within one year —R—FREIH 19 136 126
Tax payable FE R IR 6,504 3,586
24,724 26,931
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 234,986 211,262
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHBERRBAS 306,114 331,740
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Obligation under a finance lease B & 4R E 19 183 319
Net Assets BEFE 305,931 331,421
EQUITY e
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO RN EPRRELEAR
THE COMPANY'’S EQUITY HOLDERS RfEHE
Share capital N 20 11,056 11,056
Reserves i 22 294,875 320,365
Total Equity Mg 305,931 331,421

The financial statements on pages 28 to 72 were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June, 2006 and are signed on its

behalf by:

CHU Chien Tung

RER
DIRECTOR
EF

The notes on pages 33 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements.

F2BEVNEZHBREREN _ZEZENFANA=-1+<H
EEZeEMKEETR Th FTIIEERRESE:

CHU Chick Kei

KAER

DIRECTOR

EF

EBENEZHERANGEE U BHRAOMEKE D -
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Balance Sheet BEBERX

At 31st March, 2006 R-ZFZEXNF=A=1+—H

2006 2005
—EBERE —EERE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Mt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A TIRE 13 3,128 3,128
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H {th FE UL BR 7R 229 195
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE UL B B X B R IE 106,025 106,823
Bank balances and cash BIIEEFERRE 18 312 258
106,566 107,276
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables HEEMAERHR 2,106 1,934
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 104,460 105,342
NET ASSETS EEFE 107,588 108,470
EQUITY e
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO KATBRRELER
THE COMPANY'S EQUITY HOLDERS REE
Share capital A& A 20 11,056 11,056
Reserves G 22 96,532 97,414
Total Equity B 107,588 108,470

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June, R-ZTETXNFENA-FTNAEEESHERFRETE
2006

CHU Chien Tung CHU Chick Kei
KER KIER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE BE

The notes on pages 33 to 72 are an integral part of these financial statements. #8332 72B 2 Wit AALRE M SRR AR I -
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Share Share Special Translation  General Proposed Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  dividend profits Total
BE  ROBE BARE ERRE -REE RBRRE  REEAN A%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET FET FET FAET FAET FET
At 31st March, 2004 RZZEENE=A=+—H 11,056 101,669 (2,128) 9 8,172 3,759 140,221 262,758
Proposed final dividend paid BRER R BR S - - - - - (3,759) - (3,759)
Currency translation differences B X ZE - - - (8) - - - (8)
Transfer to general reserve BEZ-REE - - - - 8,520 - (8,520) -
Profit for the year ERNET - - - - - - 72,430 72,430
At 31st March, 2005 RZZRAF=A=+—H 11,056 101,669 (2,128) 1 16,692 - 204131 331421
Currency translation differences B X ZE - - - 5,988 - - - 5,988
Transfer to general reserve BREZ-REE - - - - 640 - (640) -
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - (31478)  (31,478)
At 31st March, 2006 R-ZEXE=A=+-H 11,056 101,669 (2,128) 5,989 17,332 - 172,013 305,931
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= A\ /\ == B &
nsoli h Flow ment 52
For the Year Ended 31st March, 2006 Etif EENF=A=+—HIFE
2006 2005
—EEXRE ZTEERF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FEr
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RE XK HESRE
(Loss)/Profit before taxation BELAT (B51E) B R (28,599) 76,017
Adjustments for: P
Interest income FEHA 5 (1,576) (1,100)
Finance costs BhE A A 7 26 42
Depreciation and amortisation ITE REE 6 6,776 4,994
Impairment on deposits paid for acquisition W% MR F MRz
of property, plant and equipment HEANE -4 42,887 -
Impairment on property, plant - BERZERE
and equipment 6 1,204 -
Changes in working capital: BEEREH
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories e, () 1,027 (784)
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEWZE 5508 Rk
HL A [ Ui BR OB 8,767 1,067
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables  EfT & SFIE K
H M FE AR R
CR4) /#n (5,486) 11,202
Cash generated from operations REXBMEBRE 25,026 91,438
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBREH (2,856) (844)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB ERER (49) (1)
Net cash generated from REXBFRBHRLER
operating activities 22,121 90,593
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHZ2HEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMX BENREHE (507) (5,382)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, W% BE RE#E 2
plant and equipment HEAVES - (7,965)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRI R - 305
Interest received 2HFE 1,576 1,100
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBRE (FTA)
investing activities HEeRE 1,069 (11,942)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZBH2HELRE
Dividend paid BT E - (3,759)
Interest and finance charges paid EAFERBEREZ (26) (42)
Inception of a finance lease EE B LA - 535
Repayment of capital element of RERNERLHER
a finance lease (126) (90)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBMARSFE (152) (3,356)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRkBLEE
EQUIVALENTS | B 23,038 75,295
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT fF?)J Ziiﬁwﬁ.ﬁgﬂﬁ
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 214,787 139,492
EXCHANGE GAIN ON CASH AND CASH ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ Bz
EQUIVALENTS A E 5,160 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF SR BRERBESEE
THE YEAR HH 18 242,985 214,787
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GROUP REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Company Law (2001 Second
Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 26th July, 2002.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Tungda Industrial Limited
("Tungda Industrial”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Group are trading and manufacturing of light source
products. The address of its registered office is Century Yard, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT, George Town, Grand Cayman,
British West Indies. The principal place of business of the Company is
Room 1007-8, 10th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

At the request of the Company, the Company’s shares have been
suspended from trading on the Stock Exchange since 29th July, 2004.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"), which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

EEEARVEREFEEE

ERBIRBEFERBRARE(CEE-—FE KR
BN EREHETMRIRERRBRAR-
ARFARMNBE _TE-_FLA- T RBERRES
BAXSMERATR ([BA]) BIER ([AI%
#R]) Efe

ARB 2 &BRER AR BREBEMAILZRA
TR (&EB)ARRR ([RATE (RE) ) -

RABRREERLAR AEB X EXKRE
B N B R E fo o MR E ik A Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, British
West Indies © NARZ X B & EME BB HETE
T3 BB AE 108 1007-8%

EARRER AREIRNHE —TEHFEAZ
THhEREERBIAESE-

TESTHRRZBE
REZEFREV B RRAAEM L TR SFTBORHE
TR R B HBIN ZEFERREMZROMAEB
FENERER-

(a) HwWHEEE
AEBHZEAMBRRDBREBEEEY B ®RE
HR(THEMBREED]) RE RS
HRERBEHMAE ([EEEMAE])
Bz BEE G ER ([FEGFER]) &
HZE ([ZRE]) ZEARGFRAIEE
BAREHEDD B RE AR MBRRE
RRE L AR RS

RAENEBAMBREENNUBERRS
REMETHAREH AR -WTREEEE
ERAARRRI G BEFBRPITEEHIE-
FEBRREE 2 HBRERIE BT 05
G e BRI BEARBRRMEE A
B AP REAh AR EE o
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)
The adoption of new/revised HKFRS
In 2006, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and
interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its
operations. The 2005 comparatives have been amended as
required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation
HKAS 33 Earnings Per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The adoption of new/revised HKASs and HKFRSs did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In
summary:

- HKAS 1 affects the presentation in these financial statements
that the Group is no longer permitted to not disclose
comparative information for movements in property, plant
and equipment.

- HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 18, 23, 27, 33, 36 and HKFRS 3 had
no material effect on the Group’s policies.

- HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy. The
functional currency of each of the consolidated entities has
been re-evaluated based on the guidance to the revised
standard. All the Group entities have the same functional
currency as the presentation currency for respective entity
financial statements.

2.

31st March, 2006 —ZEENF=ZH=1+—H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS (Continued)

- HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties
and some other related party disclosures.

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to the reclassification of leasehold land
and land use rights from property, plant and equipment to
operating leases. In accordance with the provisions of HKAS 17,
a lease of land and building should be split into a lease of land
and a lease of building in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and the building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front
prepayments made for the leasehold land and land use rights are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease or when there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement. In prior years,
the leasehold land and land use rights were accounted for at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment. The
new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively to the
extent that results in the reclassification of certain leasehold
interests in land and land use rights previously included in “Fixed
assets” as “Leasehold land and land use rights” with comparatives
restated to conform to the current year's presentation. However,
this change has no significant impact on the Group’s results and
equity.

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy for recognition, measurement, derecognition
and disclosure of financial instruments. However, the adoption
of HKASs 32 and 39 has had no material effect on the Group’s
results and equity.

The adoption of HKFRS 2 results in a change in the accounting
policy for employee share options. Until 31st March, 2005, no
amounts were recognised when employees (which term includes
directors) were granted share options over shares in the Company.
If the employees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amount of share capital and share premium were credited only to
the extent of the option’s exercise price receivables. Following
the adoption of HKFRS 2, the fair value of share options at grant
date is amortised over the relevant vesting periods to the income
statement. However, the Group has not applied this HKFRS
retrospectively as share options of the Group granted after 7th
November, 2002 had all been vested before 1st April, 2005.

2.

31st March, 2006 —EEXNF=H=+—H

FTEEHERRZIBE (@)

(a)

BB (&)

BRANFET NG BB &R (B)

- BREHENFEARFEMBEALZ
FMhETHEBEEALZHE-

RARETERBEHERE 175 BHER
HHE L% - (EBEmYE BE L&
BEHDARKERANZEABRBME
Bo-REFESHENE 7R —ALHR
BFEEESREEL M RBEERT HA
REXNEORBKEAE T BN REER
Tz MERE 2 BE A FE LD
FomtHE L R T RSz —RE
BNRE IR BOHAABEREERAR
RAFMEX H - HHHERBE ARESR
WARKAIEX H -RBEFE BEL
whtiEREIRKARRETERR
FORME AR ¥ & 5T B DR W R AT
SATEEEE] 2B T LR i A%
HERSH P BRIHEEI MR HEM
B EEBBFOEINNAAFEZE
G AT ZEBAY BB ANEE 2 RE
REGEBREATE-

RNEB ST ERE2RIKEHERmMT
AR 8 BUBERRKE 2 85T
RO ER R RAFE G ERIE32
K3 MEANKEZ RERERBKE
Ry s

RMBARW B REERNE 2R EHRE B
et BREEREYH-EE_TERF=
A=1+—B BEE (BREF) BEARQA
Betn 2 R R - EEE M R IR AR - W '
BEETERRE RARRMDEEZEE
VAE W BR 2 FE AR T T (B (B /3 L R AR < 3R 40
EREMBMEENFE2RZ BRERERE
Bz A ER AR R BB AT R AREK
TEE-AT ARAKER_FTT_F+
—AtBRRERZBERECR _ZTTHF
MA—BRZERERE WA KB EEWE
RZEEVBREEL

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2005/06

35



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 iy % BT %fE

2,

31st March, 2006 —ZFEEXNF=ZH=4—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEETBRZBE @)
(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued) (a) mEEE (F)
The adoption of revised HKAS 17 resulted in: RN TR ENE1I7TR 2 BR:
2006 2005
—EBEXRE —ETHE
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Decrease in property, Y- B R
plant and equipment JAER L (7,165) (7,144)
Increase in leasehold land HELH R T
and land use rights i FAREE N 7,165 7,144
(b) Basis of consolidation (b) #“ZLREERE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls the composition of the board of directors,
controls more than half of the voting power or holds more than
half of the issued share capital.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interests. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the income statement .
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segment
operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, furniture,
fixtures and equipment, leasehold improvements, plant and
machinery and motor vehicle, are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values
(if, there are any) over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An item
of fixed asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of the asset,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the income

statement in the period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than

its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(g)).

(f) Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are lump sum upfront payments
to acquire long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties.
Leasehold land and land use rights relating to buildings of the
Group are stated at cost and are amortised over the period of the

lease on the straight-line basis to the income statement.

20 years or the unexpired
term of lease, whichever
is shorter

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()]

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts
(if any).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and,
after initial recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-term
payables with no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting
being immaterial, that are measured at their original invoiced
amount.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (Treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes,) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period, directly
in equity.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes for
staff in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the
mandatory provident fund scheme for staff in Hong Kong are
charged as expense as they fall due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the goods are delivered to the customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant asset
is amortised over the life of the project from the date of
commencement of commercial operation subject to a maximum
period of five years.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.

Leases

(i) Operating lease (as the lessee)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(i) Finance lease (as the lessee)

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially obtained
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current and non-current bank and other borrowings. The
interest element of the finance cost is recognised in the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The investment properties
acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value,
while the property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful
lives of the assets or the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

(i)  directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party:

(1) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group;

(2)  has an interest in the Group that gives its significant
influence over the Group; or

(3)  has joint control over the Group;
(i) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;
(iii)  the party is an associate;

(iv)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or its parent;

(v)  the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that are not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk.
The Group's risk management objectives and policies mainly focus on
minimizing the potential adverse effects of these risks on the Group by
closely monitoring the individual exposure as follows:

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The PRC operations of the Group operate with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in Renminbi (“RMB”").
However, Hong Kong Dollars are required to settle the Group's
expenses and purchases of plant and equipment. As the historical
exchange rate fluctuation on RMB is not significant, there is no
significant exposure expected on RMB transactions and balances.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency debts or transactions.
However, the management monitors the related foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant currency
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has
policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made and
services are provided to customers with an appropriate credit
history. It also sets credit limit on each individual customer and
prior approval is required for any transaction exceeding that limit.
The customer with sound payment history would accumulate a
higher credit limit.

(c) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability
to close out market positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available
and sufficient bank deposits to meet short term cash requirements.

(d) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits and finance
lease obligations and the exposure to such risk is minimal as the
Group's bank deposits are primarily short term in nature.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s net book value of property, plant and equipment as
at 31st March, 2006 was approximately HK$53,792,000. The
Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful lives of two to ten years, and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values. The
estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
Management will increase the depreciation expense where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

4,
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CXEB HUBUARAERDEEN

2006 2005
—EBERE —ETRHF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
TURNOVER BEH

Sales of light source products HENREM 47,106 274,662

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS B AR 8
Bank interest income RITHF B WA 1,576 1,100
Other income E bl A 30 85
1,606 1,185
TOTAL REVENUE U= 48 28 48,712 275,847

Business segments

The Group is organised into 2 operating divisions — manufacturing and
trading of house brand light source products and the distribution of
agency brand light source products. These two operating divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

EBRRE D

AEBIZEBIEE RAKM AT N5 kg
RERNBERESHER URRIERERE
A D IHE A EMIAEBRE I AEB A E
TEOBERHMER RS RIBELE-
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment information about these businesses is presented as below:

5.

31st March, 2006

—==

NF=A=1+—H

EEB HBRARFERDBEH ()

BRAZEEBNIBRENZIMT:

House brand

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
g w8 RIERE  Consolidated
HBRER KBRER wma
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
INCOME STATEMENT LON:
For the year ended BE-_FENEF
31st March, 2006 ZA=T—HIFFE
Turnover - 35,555 11,551 47,106
Results E
Segment results DEEER 21,388 3,053 24,441
Unallocated corporate expenses AN RABFX (54,590)
Interest income, net of finance costs FILBUA - 0B B & A A 1,550
Loss before taxation bR BRI 1B (28,599)
Taxation Bi1E (2,879)
Loss for the year FREE (31,478)
House brand  Agency brand
light source light source
products products
g mhg RIERE  Consolidated
XBRER KBRER wmae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
BALANCE SHEET EEBMEX
At 31st March, 2006 RZFEENF=ZH=4+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DHEEE 79,072 4,031 83,103
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERFEE 247,735
Consolidated total assets REAEBE 330,838
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities SEBE 19,500 2,093 21,593
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEAFAR 3,314
Consolidated total liabilities e REEE 24,907
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)

CXRB HUURARFAERDEES (@)

EBRBE DN (EF)

House brand

Agency brand

light source light source
products products
KEmE RERE Unallocated Consolidated
KBER KBER Ko E wa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FEr FET FET FEr
OTHER INFORMATION HirEs
For the year ended BE-_FENEF
31st March, 2006 ZA=+—HIUFE
Additions of property, plant and REVE -BER
equipment B 4,003 - 4 4,007
Depreciation of property, plant L E =058
and equipment RETE 6,065 - 559 6,624
Amortisation of leasehold land HELH R T
and land use rights i AR 8 152 - - 152
Impairment on property, plant - -BRE R
and equipment BREBRE 1,204 - - 1,204
Impairment on deposits paid for ¢ ES
acquisition of property, plant WEREH#E T ®
and equipment OB E - - 42,887 42,887
House brand Agency brand
light source light source
products products
KEmE RERME  Consolidated
HBER KRER wa
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
INCOME STATEMENT LON:
For the year ended BE_FEERF
31st March, 2005 ZA=T—HIFFE
Turnover - 135,904 138,758 274,662
Results E
Segment results DR 97,156 10,853 108,009
Unallocated corporate expenses AN RABFX (33,050)
Interest income, net of finance costs FILBUA - 0B Bt & A A 1,058
Profit before taxation B B4 BT i A 76,017
Taxation Bi1E (3,587)
Profit for the year F A A 72,430
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5.

TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

31st March, 2006 —ZFEEXNF=ZH=4—

EXRB HHUWARFAER

REBRED

(&)

BES #®)

House brand  Agency brand
light source light source
products products
KEmE KERE  Consolidated
KIRE R KIRER wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
BALANCE SHEET EEREX
At 31st March, 2005 R-_FEFERF=ZA=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 133,522 4,996 138,518
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERREAE 220,153
Consolidated total assets RAEEERE 358,671
Liabilities BfE
Segment liabilities DEAE 19,151 4,229 23,380
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBARAE 3,870
Consolidated total liabilities e AaEEE 27,250
House brand Agency brand
light source light source
products products
Bk R hE Unallocated Consolidated
FRE M KEER RO E wmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
OTHER INFORMATION Hit&H
For the year ended BE_ZFEERF
31st March, 2005 ZA=1—HIFE
Additions of property, plant and REWE -BEN&
equipment B 22,807 - 1,040 23,847
Deposits paid for acquisition of ~ WEWZE WE K&
property, plant and equipment R Z T &K 7,965 - - 7,965
Depreciation of property, plant 9% -HEX
and equipment BRETE 4,101 - 745 4846
Amortisation of leasehold land ~ FAE&E b & i
and land use rights b AR 8 148 - - 148
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5. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments
The Group’s operations are located in the PRC and Hong Kong. The

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

CXRB HUURARFAERDEES (@)

it & 2 A7
RNEERTEAREBMHEE EE TRETIA
B

following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by SEEMETSE D (THRERREM) & EE
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods: DT

2006 2005

—EEXRE —ETRHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHETT TFET

The PRC, excluding Hong Kong PR NEIERE 52 124,794

Hong Kong aBE 11,819 14,157

Europe M 20,418 68,504

North America dE5M 14,817 43,727

Others HAth 3[R - 23,480

47,106 274,662

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets
and additions to property, plant and equipment analysed by the
geographical areas in which the assets are located:

T RIZEEMREROMHODBEEREER

Carrying amount

NEME -BERRET

Additions to and
deposits paid for
acquisition of
property, plant
and equipment

of consolidated REYXE-BE
segment assets RRERKBYE
RE0H B R R
EERMEE Ak ANEA
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEBERF —ZTTLF ZBERE —TThEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET
Hong Kong BE 65,907 71,321 4 1,041
The PRC, excluding RE e
Hong Kong BB 264,931 287,350 4,003 30,771
330,838 358,671 4,007 31,812
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31st March, 2006

2k + 4 >

—eEAF=A=+-A

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 6. K& (HR) A
(As restated)
(FEE5))
2006 2005
—EEXRE ZTERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit from operations has been K (1) B R
arrived at after charging: PEFCE]
Directors’ remuneration (note) BEEME (Fa)
— Fees —#e - -
— Other emoluments —EAe 599 5,625
— Retirement benefits contributions —RREF 16 60
615 5,685
Other staff costs Hih 8 TRA 4,089 5,532
Retirement benefits contributions for Hth 8 TR KT
other staff HK 175 254
Total staff costs B THRKA 4,879 11,471
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR BN & 530 600
Cost of inventories recognised FE K ATERIE
as an expense X 19,337 165,923
Depreciation and amortisation on e R
— owned assets —BEEE 6,517 4,757
— leased asset —HEEE 107 89
— leasehold land and land use rights —HE i R L A 152 148
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REFHEEHRE
and buildings e 1,113 1,406
Bad debts written off 122 AR 8 76 -
Impairment on property, plant and ME- -BRERZERE
equipment (note 717) (Ktaz11) 1,204 -
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6. (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

note:

Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees

(i) Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

6. K&

HtaE:

31st March, 2006 —EEXNF=H=+—H

(E518) aF ()

ESREEFEENE
EEzHe

(i)

IRIRBEZZF

NEH EmARAREEQTEFIE 161

FFABRBEZESFAMSIAT:

Retirement 2006 2005
Directors’  Salaries and benefits Total Total
Name of directors Fees allowances contributions —BEXRE —EZIHF
EEHE EEWS FeREN ERERMHR st st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Mr. Chu Chien Tung KEFRERE - 327 2 329 2,325
Mr. Chu Chick Kei KER %4 - 40 2 42 1,652
Mr. Chu Sen Hei KEBTE - 40 2 42 662
Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona (1) BHEF L (1) - - - - 723
Dr. Fung Shui Lun, Anthony * I - 96 5 101 84
Ms. Chang Wai Ling, Lily *(2) BEIZ LT * (2) - - - - 11
Mr. Hong Yong Hwan * ey e o - 96 5 101 101
Mr. Zhu Lei Bo * EREE - - - - 48
Ms. Wu King Yin # (3) HEFZ+ 3) - - - - 48
Mr. Wong Tik Tung # (4) SENER L (4) - - - - 31
- 599 16 615 5,685
* Non-executive director * FEHITESE
# Independent non-executive director # BUIHHITEF
(1) Resigned on 15th February, 2005 (1) R-ZFEZERF_A+AABT
(2)  Resigned on 1st June, 2004 2) RZZFEZFmMFENA—HEF
(3)  Appointed on 1st June, 2004 and resigned on 23rd November, 3) R-ZFEZEMFNA—HEZERR-_ZTZE
2004 WF+—H=+=HEF
(4)  Appointed on 9th December, 2004 and resigned on 24th March, (4) —EFPNFAf —ANAEZERR-ZE

2005

Each of Mr. Chu Chien Tung, Mr, Chu Chick Kei and Mr. Chu Sen Hei

REBEE-ZTZT

%’“ﬁfﬁfﬁ_+ﬂ75’éﬁff

RNEZA=Z+-HLFE RERELE K

has waived respectively the amount approximately HK$1,623,000, BEREEARARBELEESEREHZ S AL
HK$1,650,000, and HK$610,000 of remuneration for the year ended 31st 1,623,000 7T+ 1,650,000/ 7T K% 610,000/ JT °
March, 2006.
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(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (Continued)

note: (Continued)

Emoluments of directors and highest paid employees (Continued)

(i)  Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2005: four) director(s),
details of whose emoluments are set out in note (i) above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2005: one) individuals are as follows:

31st March, 2006 —ZFEEXNF=ZH=4—

e (B]) B (e

ffet: (%)

EEREEFEEMS (B)
(i) EEHE

AuUBSFALRE -2 (CETRF MR E
= ZEATZHEFBEHER LX) - E#m
#H(ZFBRF —R) ALZBEWT:

2006 2005
—BEAE —RRREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHz Fib7
Salaries and other benefits e RER 1,398 480
Retirement benefits contributions RIRAE RIS 48 12
1,446 492
FINANCE COSTS ELE= 22N
2006 2005
—EEXRE ZTERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable ~ AR AFRNEBEREE 2
within five years RITIEHF L - 25
Finance charges MEMRK 26 17
26 42
TAXATION B8
2006 2005
—EEARF —TERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current taxation: ANERBEIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRGN 2,879 3,587

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group

has sustained a tax loss for both years.

HRARERSFERFEHRTAEER S &

HEANEHREHLEE-
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TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, two subsidiaries
of the Company are entitled to exemption from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for two years commencing from their first profit making year of
operations and thereafter, they are entitled to a 50% relief from PRC
Enterprise Income Tax which is charged at 24% for the following three
years. The first profit making year of the subsidiaries in PRC commenced
on Tst January, 2001 and 1st January, 2003 respectively.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before
taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

BIE ()
RIEFBEBRED FOER AR R MEMME A A
AREEERNFEETNEERRBANTED
EMER LATRER =ZFEHR2EMN50% T E
REREY (BERER24%) -ZEPRNB L
AN BEANFESIR-_FT—F—-A—8BK
—EE=F—-HF—HRK-

AERRBES HAREEWRARR ZRBA (B
18) CRFIE R

2006 2005
“EEXRE —ZTERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (BB EF (28,599) 76,017
Tax at the domestic income tax rate AT SRR E 2 FE (5,005) 13,303
Tax effect of expenses not deductible R
for tax purposes BB 7,863 125
Tax effect of income not assessable BARBUMA Z
for tax purposes M E 3) (1)
Tax effect of temporary difference REBAEREGREZE 2
unrecognised for the year BB 506 -
Tax effect of tax losses unrecognised REEARERBEEEZ
for the year BB 754 1,097
Effect of preferential tax rates REMBIERRELE 2
of subsidiaries operating WEBARZEE
in other jurisdiction MERFE (1,306) (11,013)
Others Ef 70 76
Taxation charged to income statement R ARK IR 2 FHIB 2,879 3,587

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in both years as the

amount involved is insignificant.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of
HK$882,000 (2005: a loss of HK$4,794,000).

AR P S & BRR I N BRSO3 Mt % A AR
BT AR

AATRESEABEREE (F8) &
A
RAGIERFE AN 2 BBERARRMSR
ZAA Bt AEIBA882,0008 L (ZEZTH
£ [§5184,794,00058 7)) ©
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10.

31st March, 2006 —ZFEEXNF=ZH=4—

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 10. B8R (B#1R) &R
The calculation of the (loss)/earnings per share is based B (BER) BRRTHEEE:
on the following data:
2006 2005
“EEXRE —ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(Loss)/earnings (EB8E) BF
(Loss)/profit for the year for the purposes M ESRERAREERF
of basic and diluted earnings per share ZREE (B18) 8 F (31,478) 72,430
Number of shares RAEER
Weighted average number of shares MAEERER (BB &F
for the purpose of basic (loss)/ 2 IR0 hne 15 2
earnings per share 1,105,600,000 1,105,600,000
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years ended AR ARRRBE_ZERER_EZREF=H
31st March, 2006 and 2005 as the Company did not have any dilutive =+ —BIEFEIEEMEEEE N 2 RETR
potential shares outstanding in both years. MY EERMEFESREERF) -
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37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. NE BERDE
Furniture,
fixtures Plant
Leasehold and Leasehold and
buildings equipment improvements machinery Motor
BH-£8 HEYE BER vehicles Total
HEry & #1 M RE ‘et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FAET FAET
THE GROUP A&EH
Cost A
At 1st April, 2004 RZZZNFMNA—A
As previously reported BAZH 21,550 1,501 960 24,350 387 48,748
Effect of adopting HnaE g LR
HKAS 17 EAVEvd % (7,418) - - - - (7,418)
As restated KED 14,132 1,501 960 24,350 387 41,330
Exchange realignment I RE - - - 85 - 85
Additions NE 514 107 473 22,218 535 23,847
At 31st March, 2005, NZEEZRE=RA=+—8"
as restated mE5 14,646 1,608 1,433 46,653 922 65,262
At 1st April, 2005, R-ZZETRFNA—F-
as restated mES 14,646 1,608 1,433 46,653 922 65,262
Exchange realignment B 5, B 355 10 - 618 9 992
Additions NE - 42 - 3,965 - 4,007
At 31st March, 2006 R-BEXF=ZA=+—-A 15,001 1,660 1,433 51,236 931 70,261
Depreciation and impairment HERRE
At 1st April, 2004 RZETWFEMRA—A
As previously reported BEZR 622 529 720 1,882 17 3,770
Effect of adopting RnE &G %8
HKAS 17 TR v E (126) - - - - (126)
As restated ®EF| 496 529 720 1,882 17 3,644
Charged for the year, FRIM-
as restated mES 718 279 437 3,253 159 4,846
At 31st March, 2005, RZZETRF=A=+—8"
as restated KE5| 1,214 808 1,157 5,135 176 8,490
At 1st April, 2005 RZETAFMA—A 1,214 808 1,157 5,135 176 8,490
Exchange realignment RS 31 5 - 112 3 151
Charged for the year FRYH 739 286 237 5,184 178 6,624
Impairment loss REEE - - - 1,204 - 1,204
At 31st March, 2006 R-ZBBRF=ZA=t-H 1,984 1,099 1,394 11,635 357 16,469
Net book value REFE
At 31st March, 2006 R-BBERE=ZA=+—-H 13,017 561 39 39,601 574 53,792
At 31st March, 2005, RZZETRF=A=+—8"
as restated KE5| 13,432 800 276 41,518 746 56,772
Net book value of leased asset HEEERTFE
At 31st March, 2006 R-ZBBRF=ZA=+-H - - - - 339 339
At 31st March, 2005 RZZEZRF=A=1+—H - - - - 446 446
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 1.

he Financial

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are held under land

use rights for 50 years expiring in 2053.

Certain plant and machinery have been impaired by reference to the
professional valuation at 31st March, 2006 made by qualified valuers,
BMI Appraisals Limited. The impairment loss of HK$1,204,000 (note 6)
was made on the carrying value of induction lamps machinery equipment
and charged to the consolidated income statement.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

ments BAFK¥ i

31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXNF=A=1+—H

ME-BRERSZE &)
NEBZEFMRFBE THRE L ERERSE
R-ZER=FEm BH50F-

HTREREBEZE2RE BRI ERD T AERS T
HERARR-EENF=A=1+—HEHLZE
EHEERE-CHREGL N BEREREIREE
YE1,204,0007 TR B 518 (H5E6) - WE 4R
BUARE NG -

12. HEL MR T tERRE

THE GROUP
AEE
2006 2005
—EEXRE ZTERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cost B 7R
At beginning of the year FH
as previously reported B2 _ _
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 RMNBEBGHEREI1TR 2 HE 7,418 7,418
As restated &5 7,418 7,418
Exchange realignment PE i S 179 -
At end of the year Fx 7,597 7,418
Accumulated amortisation Egagc 3
At beginning of the year FH
as previously reported BEE3F - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 RMNBEBGHEREI1TR 2 HE 274 126
As restated K E 5 274 126
Exchange realignment PE i S 6 -
Amortisation for the year PANCYER L 152 148
At end of the year Fx 432 274
Net book value BREFE
At end of the year Fx 7,165 7,144
Portion classified as current assets SERREBEE BN 152 148
Long term portion RHEEB 1D 7,013 6,996
At beginning of the year (as restated) F9(KET) 7,144 7,292
The leasehold land and land use rights are held for 50 years expiring in BEHETH R TiEREZ RN A=

2053.

FEm RH50F-
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13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

13. MBARKRE

2006 2005

—EEXRE ZTERF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Unlisted shares, at cost LMD R AE 3,128 3,128

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31st March, 2006 are set RARZMBRARNRZZEERF=A=+—RH2
out as follows: BT

Percentage of
nominal value

Issued and of issued share
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
Place of registered by the Company
incorporation/ capital RAR
establishment Place of BRTR ERTRA/
Name of company HEMmR&L operation #BEREK/ HftRA Principal activities
AAEH R4 BEw HERA HERAL TEER
Directly  Indirectly
HE 5
Bright Growth Resources Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$1 100 - Investment holding
RBRUES Bk 1% REZK
Bright World Resources Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Us$4 100 - Investment holding
RBRUES Bk 4ETT REZK
Direct Intelligent Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong US$1 100 - Not yet
EBRARE B 1%7T commenced business
Ultra Modern Technology Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong us$2 100 - Investment holding
RBRUES Bk 25T REZK
Tungda Electrical & Lighting Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$4 - 100 Trading of light
Limited ("Tungda Electrical")? B0 & 4ETT source products
RAREXBRHABRAA BEEXREM
([RREHE])!
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31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXNF=A=1+—H

13. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. MBRARIKRE (&)

Percentage of
nominal value

Issued and of issued share
fully paid capital/registered
share capital/ capital held
Place of registered by the Company
incorporation/ capital NN g3
establishment Place of 2RTR BRITRE/
Name of company SR operation HEREK/ HEftRA Principal activities
ARER AL 8 g M RA HERAL TEEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# CiF3
Light Power (Shenzhen) PRC PRC HK$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited* H H 10,000,000 7t trading of light
2 NRECRI) BRAF source products
HEREEXRER
Tungda Lighting (Fujian) PRC PRC RMB26,942,748 - 100 Manufacturing and
Company Limited H # AR#26,942,7487C trading of light
("Tungda Fujian”)* source products
RARHA(BR) ARAA HEREEXRER
(RARBRE])*
Note: Bt st -
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at 31st March, RZZZRNF=ZRA=+—BRENEARE B EEM
2006 or at any time during the year. MEAREERERERBEHEES-
# Private companies with limited liability. # BEREFESHFLE R A]
* Wholly foreign-invested enterprise with limited liability. * BEREEHI EBEDE
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14. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

14. WENX BERRBZITEAR

THE GROUP
rEE

2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FHET
Balance brought forward AR AR 56,710 67,105
Addition wNE - 7,965
Recognised as fixed assets WREEFEEE (3,500) (18,360)
a 53,210 56,710
Impairment A b (42,887) -
Balance carried forward EaE ke 10,323 56,710
Note a: The balances at 31st March, 2006 and 2005 represented outstanding Wita R-ZBEERNER-_ZERF=ZA=+—82#&
deposits paid for three outstanding contracts for the acquisition of HRIERBEREI 2 =ZOR S NFEMALF
machineries pursuant to contracts with two PRC manufacturers in 2004. BEEEEI L RATN B M 2 &775]
Note b: The Group has since negotiated with the two PRC manufacturers for BfaE b - REBE RS IR E B ] £957,000% 7T &

the refund of HK$957,000 and HK$9,366,000 respectively of the deposits
paid. Under the proposed arrangement, the non-refundable balances of
the deposits can be used to partially settle for the considerations of the
machineries supplied by the manufacturers within specified period from
the date of agreements but otherwise will be forfeited. Subsequent to
the balance sheet date, an agreement has been signed with one of the
manufacturers for the refund of HK$957,000 and the refund for
HK$9,366,000 is subject to both parties’ signatures and other further
terms of an agreement. As the management of the Group is unable to
determine at this stage whether the Group will purchase such machineries
and be able to utilise the non-refundable deposits, the directors consider
that under the said arrangements, the impairment for the non-refundable
balances of HK$42,887,000 is appropriate and necessary.

9,366,000/ 7T ify £2 A iz A B &Y 3¢5 7 19p 7l o AR B
ZERZF L2 RH ZER @ 2 TR B
BRA M AEENZEREEaRES 2B
RBETFTIE AR M FE A 2 2 B - T EL b 3B 15
BRI -REE R K —(EERC IR
B & #957,000/ i 5] 3 —HE % T A
9,366,000/8 T 2 R R ANBAREZESRARE
it — SRR RN A RE BB ERME R R
HEASERSEREZEREREEHEA
ZETARBFS MEERA BE LR
B BLA AT IR [@ 45 #442,887,00058 7T VE H RUE
REERBFER-

Tungda Innovative Lighting Holdings Limited Annual Report 2005/06

61



15.

16.

H 7& =

AN

D

N he Financial men \
31st March, 2006 —ZEZENF=H=1+—H
INVENTORIES 15. FE
THE GROUP
REE
2006 2005
—EBEXRE —ETRF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials, at cost R R R ANE 2,375 2,372
Finished goods, at cost BIRK fh - IR ANE 6,519 7,455
8,894 9,827
At 31st March, 2006 and 2005, there were no inventories stated at net RIEERNERZ ffft‘ii A=+—8 #&
realisable value. FEILO 21 % (E5 R

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. FEH&TE’L%E-E X B H At FE WK
e

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are as follows: i3 BE 20 % E b pE W 5k IEZEEETEXZDTi
THE GROUP
rEH
2006 2005
“EEXRE —TERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Trade debtors FENE 5 R K 1,709 2,291
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments  E i EUBEFR - 1Z & R IB B 2,839 10,865
4,548 13,156
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other EERA Fgﬂﬁlf’fgjﬁﬁ R E A e MR IE 2 AR TE
receivables approximate to their fair values. BEAXNFEEES
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade debtors, included in trade and
other receivables, is as follows:

m n H 7& =

AN

D

AY

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

e B 5 BRI E At B IRIR ()
AEBE T ARYE 5 8R0S E A B Y IR A 2 &

WE SRR RROTMT

2006 2005

—EERE —TERF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within three months =@AR 1,349 1,796
Four months to six months MEAZENEA 293 404
Seven months to twelve months t@Az+=A 58 67
More than one year —F Pk 9 24
1,709 2,291

The Group normally allows credit periods ranging from 7 to 90 days to
its trade customers.

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEE-—RETHESEFPNEENRALRAEN

+aTE.

BNESRRRAMENRE

THE GROUP
rEE

2006 2005
—BERE —EETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT F&T
Trade creditors FERTE SR 3,268 6,117
Other creditors and accrued charges HMENRIBERETER 14,816 17,102
18,084 23,219

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other
payables approximate to their fair values.

EERE ENESERRAMENKE S ER
b

BEREEQNFEEMBES
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18.

N he Financial

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade creditors, included in trade and

other payables, is as follows:

men

H 7& =

AN

D

AY

31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXNF=A=1+—H

17. BENESZRRRHEMENIER (&)

NEZERFKZRE DTN T :

AEBE R ARNE S8R R E BN FIRRN 2 &

2006 2005
—EEXREF —TETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within three months =@AR 1,243 4,419
Four months to six months M{E A = ~1EA 829 203
Seven months to twelve months t@EAZ+ @A 22 1,123
More than one year —F U E 1,174 372
3,268 6,117

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. e KB EEEER

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
EHE ¥ NN

2006 2005 2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRF —ETRE —TThHEF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Bank balances and cash RITEHRER S 242,985 214,787 312 258
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37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

19. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 19. BLEMHLOEIE
At 31st March, 2006, the Group’s total minimum lease payment under RZBTZRNF=ZA=1T—H FAEEREMENR
finance lease arrangement and its present value are as follows: s xEHcBRERERERNT:

THE GROUP
rEE
2006 2005
ZEEXREF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET F&T
Amounts payable JE A~ R IE
Within one year —FR" 152 152
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZERFT RIEEEMTF 191 343
Total minimum lease payment ®EHSBE 343 495
Future finance lease charges REBEHORZ (24) (50)
Present value of total minimum REMEHBE
lease payments RAE 319 445
The present value of finance lease T ZI B [ 21 B 2 i 8 AE 4D
obligation is due as follows: AIEZRE:
Within one year —FR" 136 126
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEEZERFT REEEMTF 183 319
319 445
Falling due within one year included FARBARE
in current liabilities M —F A E| Ef (136) (126)
183 319
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20.

21.

31st March, 2006 —ZFEEXNF=ZH=4—

SHARE CAPITAL 20. BRZA
2006 2005
—EBEXE —TETRHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: AT
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares 5,000,000,000%
of HK$0.01 each FREECOIE T LB 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREAR:
1,105,600,000 ordinary shares 1,105,600,000/%
of HK$0.01 each FREECOIE T LB 11,056 11,056
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 21. BB ESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 12th
July, 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
persons, including the directors of the Company, full time and part
time employees of the Group and the consultants or adviser of the
Group. Pursuant to the Scheme, the board of the directors may grant
share options to the eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the
Company. Options granted must be taken up within a period of 28
days from the date of options granted and upon payment of HK$1 as
the consideration for the options granted. Unless otherwise terminated
or altered, the Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with shares previously issued
pursuant to options exercised under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time and the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any one eligible person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price shall be determined by the board of directors
and notified to the eligible persons and shall be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

ARBAR_TE_FL AT - ARNBLEE S
(T5H8)) B ERBERAL BREARRES.
REB 2R NRBRE MRS 2 % R E R
BERERBIRE-RIFTE EFGUMEE
BALTERTARBEARR B I Z R - 05 R
DANEHBE R BES —+/\ B HEER-
AREMNERBRERABN BT 2REFRIE
ST IEHAERIERTIN BB R T F AR

RIBFHEIR BER I 2 IR AR MEPT S R IR0 8RB IR -
B[R SRR BT BITTE B A M 217 2 By -
BHBARR TR HEHITRAI10% » RERF+
AR EREN-—RAEBALTREZE
Wigprg Rz R BB LR RITSEBA QR
TREHTRA1% -

RABEEAHEEFSET YHEAEBAL AT

%&ECL/{T B &S E ()P B WK ATRAR
DRE2BREER ZALARRSRE) ERIZE

R W T (& s (i) Bt X T B SRR TR TE B85 12
EEREEANAERS BEAERZ KT
& RGixHmmE
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21.

22,

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options
held by employees (including directors) and the movements in such
holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2006:

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

BRRETE (&)
TEREEBEZE-_ZTENF=-A=1+—HILEFER
BB (BRES) I AARBREZFBERZSE
B 2 B

Outstanding

Exercised or Outstanding

Exercise at 31.3.2005 granted at 31.3.2006
price Exercisable R-ZZEEREF during RZEERE
Date of grant per share period =A=+-H the year =Z=A=t+—-~H
RHAH BRTEE TR HRITE FRTEIRH i R AT B
3.10.2003 0.345 22.10.2003-21.10.2013 33,140,672 - 33,140,672
21.11.2003 0.452 29.11.2003-28.11.2013 12,659,328 - 12,659,328
45,800,000 - 45,800,000
RESERVES e
THE GROUP REE

(a)

Pursuant to the relevant accounting rules and regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises established in the
PRC, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer not
less than 10% of its profit after taxation to the general reserve
fund until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their
respective registered capital. The balances of the general reserve
fund cannot be reduced except where approval is obtained from
the relevant PRC authority to setoff accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition under
the group reorganisation of the Group took place in July, 2002.

(a)

BEEARTBRRIZIIERENEZH
BRI RRD AEEFREWE A RZA
BEBBRRTOR10%E BE —REHE
EEZESHATFTEESFMBRAZ50% B 1k
e IEE A B P B B AR S 25
BB A BAITERD —REEES
ZEETFe

Bl R AR FT I IB I B & B 2 B ) T B B2
REAEENR _ZET S+ AETZEHE
SAREMETARRRNEER 2 Z%E-
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22. RESERVES (Continued)

31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXNF=A=1+—H

22. f#¥E (&)

23,

THE COMPANY VNN

Retained

profits/

(accumulated

Share Proposed losses)
Premium dividend REBRF, Total
% 10 %5 8 EBEERE (R5tEE) et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FHET FET
At 31st March, 2004 R-_ZEZNFE=A=+—H 101,669 3,759 539 105,967
Proposed final dividend paid  ##/& 7 Hif% 5 - (3,759) - (3,759)
Loss for the year FREBE - (4,794) (4,794)
At 31st March, 2005 R_ZEERF=A=+—H 101,669 - (4,255) 97,414
Loss for the year FREE - - (882) (882)
At 31st March, 2006 R-BEXRE=ZA=+—H 101,669 - (5,137) 96,532

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the net
amount of share premium and accumulated losses. Under the Companies
Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and/or Articles
of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the share premium
and retained profits of the Company. As at 31st March, 2006, the
Company’s reserve available for distribution amounted to approximately
HK$96,532,000 (2005: HK$97,414,000).

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, certain deposits paid in prior
year for acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to
HK$3,500,000 (2005: HK$18,360,000) have been recognised as
property, plant and equipment.

23.

Rpalz JESIRFEEERDEEREZFBERZ
SFRECIRIEF SRS AHIE2RERRNE (BFTA) -
AN E) 2 B m B AT R AR R VE I 9 TR SR A AR
BOWASARRABERRME,SEBER
AN ZESRBR AR R BRE D IR SR B2 AR
RINERER B B RS BREP IR HEMN 2 EE-
RBEARNR ZABERME BREATREARRQRR
DHEEBERRBEMNTFEMS - R_TEZNF=A=
+—H AR RZ A # oIk FEEX £96,532,000
BT (CEZERF 97,414,000 7T) °

FEHRBRERS
REE-TEENE=ZA=+—HILEFERN LF
EEYE BE k&SN 2 574€3,500,000
BT (CZETHE 18,360,000/ 7T) CHERAEY
¥ BB Rk
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24,

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year, the Group had the following significant transactions
with related parties:

24, BEALRS
ER AEERBEATRTUTEARS:

37st March, 2006 —ZEZEXF=ZF=+—H

2006 2005
“EEXRE ZTERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Ultimate holding company: IR ER A A
Rental paid to Tungda RNTPRARIE ()
Industrial Limited BRARIZEE 108 108

Messrs. CHU Chien Tung, CHU Chick Kei and CHU Siu Chun jointly
hold the entire beneficial interest in Tungda Industrial Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings which fall due as follows:

AERAEE REREERKAELEARFE
ARRHRBERDBRALE (RE) GRARE

REE R RNREBIREA LR ET 8 A
HREMONATHRIMEMNH AR SERS

2006 2005

—senE —TTHf

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,014 1,249
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLF BEEEMT 171 1,056
1,185 2,305

The operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office premises and factories. Leases are generally
negotiated for a term of one to two years.

RERVESEARERE THAZVENERE
Nz HO—RZ-—ERMFIEH-
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26.

27.

28.

31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXNF=A=1+—H

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 26. EXRKHEAMAE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Amount contracted for but not provided #t F%|IEB B4
in the financial statements BRRE B HREEE
in respect of 2R
— acquisition of property, —WEME -BE
plant and equipment KB 24,773 24,773
— research and development expenditure — 58 & FI 25 2 200 200
— advertising expenditure —-EBHERX 880 880
25,853 25,853
POTENTIAL CLAIM 27. BERE
During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group received a letter HE_ZZNMF=-A=1+—HLFE A£EE
from an overseas manufacturer (the “Manufacturer”) concerning the eGSR ([RERE]) 2Rt BBASE
allegation of potential infringement of certain patent rights of the BRI EN B TEFE - BHEAREH
Manufacturer. Up to the date of this report, the Group has not infringed B AR BN SR RE R 2 5 W R R ot
such patent rights of the Manufacturer. Accordingly, no provision for WEF I B RERBERS-
this potential claim has been made.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 28. RIKBFRTE

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions to MPF Scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement scheme
organised by the local government of Shenzhen, the PRC. All employees
in the PRC are entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed portion of
their individual final basic salaries at their retirement date. The Group is
required to make contributions to the retirement scheme at the rate of
9% of the basic salaries of its employees in the PRC.

During the year, the total cost of retirement benefits contributions
charged to the income statement of HK$191,000 (2005: HK$314,000)
represents contributions to the scheme made by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the respective schemes. No forfeited
contributions may be used by the employer to reduce the existing level
of contributions.

AEBASEMBRERRERIIANMEATRES S
([aE2stsl]) RRESHEAEERBUISR
ABE BAEBEEEDRFA REBEZBERR
B RINHEREEARARBAANZEELE
A% E e BER - AEBERZ RS EIA
EEz BEEERARERBESFBMELMAFEMHN-

AR E IR 2 E e BRI E M BUF RS2 R R
BAFE IETEREOBEENSHEHETNER
RZARBEAFERBETELI 2 FERAKS
AEBEAREPREEEARFHEI% 2L K[Z
SRR IR B fEKe

FRNFFARARE 2 BIKEF HRBK KB
191,000/ 7T (ZZEZHF 314,000 7T) * % ENEE
AREEREHEAZROZIET L RMEETE
ER ZHREE-EETBLRBETREEIRS
HFKF o
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29. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 29.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective as of the date of these financial
statements:

31st March, 2006 —EEXNF=H=+—H

REECBEMERERZERMBRESE
2l

BEGFEAEER/M FINER  Fal R Rz
B BMARAFEZSEIBRR TR BEY:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUTHHER 2%

B HEMRBEX

Amendments, as a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2005, to:
— HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”
— HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
— HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
HoZTRFEBRFED (BEET) EL 2 ERT
— BB ENE IR M BRER 2]
—BRGHERE27R (456 R BV BB H K]
— BB BHmELEREIN [ EHKa 0]

Amendments to HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”:
— The fair value option
— Financial guarantee contracts
HEBGTENEIR (¢RI E - BRARGTEER 2 BT
— RV EEZEE
—HBERELD

Amendments to HKAS 19 “Actuarial gains and losses, group plans
and disclosures”

HEBSFTERE 199 [BEER SEHEREE]EH 21B85]

Amendments to HKAS 21 “Net investment in a foreign operation”

HEBSTERE2R [RIEER 2 REFE] L Z BT

HKFRS-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
EENBHRESERN -REEIF [ EERHRSBSHEL]

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 “Scope of HKFRS 2"

1st January, 2006
1st January, 2006
1st January, 2006

—EERNF—A—H
—EERNF—A—H
—EERNF—A—H

1st January, 2006
1st January, 2006

A A
M %{

NE—
T NF—

1st January, 2006
—EERF—A—H

1st January, 2006
—EEXF—HA—H

1st January, 2006
—EEXF—HA—H

1st May, 2006

i (ARVBHRERBRES) 2EBFSR BBV BREENE 2R 2 HE —EERFHA—H

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

BREVBHREENETR (SR TE RE

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures”

1st January, 2007
—22t5—A—H

1st January, 2007

HEESTENZ 1R PBHRR 22T EREE I EH ZEF] —ZEZ+F—-HA—H
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N he Financial

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
(Continued)

The Group has not early adopted the above standards, interpretations
and amendments in the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2006. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state whether
substantial changes to Group’s accounting policies and presentation of
the financial statements will be resulted.

29.

men B A5 % 15

31st March, 2006 —ZEZEXN#F=H=+—Hf

FEECHEMERERZERBMBREE
Bl (&)

AEEYERNERBE_TENF=_A=1—
BIEFE 2B RERARA LR R R
Ao AKECRGFEHREMEL  ARTE
HETERAREHE U AKE S BR LM BER
RZEJELEAFE-
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